
Town of Drayton Valley Wednesday, July 13, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting 9 am Council Chambers 
 
 
 

M:\Council\Agendas\Council\2016\07-13\1.0 2016-07-13 Regular Meeting of Council Agenda Pages.doc 

Agenda 
 
Call to Order 
 
National Anthem 
 
1.0 Additions to the Agenda 

 
2.0 Adoption of Agenda 

 
3.0 Corrections or Amendments: 

3.1. June 22, 2016, Regular Meeting of Council Minutes 3-7 
 

4.0 Adoption of: 
4.1. June 22, 2016, Regular Meeting of Council Minutes  

 
5.0 Delegations 

5.1. Syrian Refugee Family – Rita Stagman 8 
5.2. S.Sgt. Malcolm Callihoo – RCMP June Report 60-66 
5.3. Tour of Alberta – Trina Joly & Sandra Bannard 9  

 
6.0 Decision Items Pages 10-41 

6.1. Councillor Bossert Request for Temporary Road Closures for 
2016 Tour of Alberta 

10 

6.2. Councillor Fredrickson Intermunicipal Development Plan 
Amendment 

11-32 

6.3. Councillor Nadeau Assessment Review & Property Tax 
Reduction Request 

33-34 

6.4. Councillor Long Request to amend Bylaw 2007/15/D, 50th 
Street Service Road Local Improvement 
Project 

35-41 

 
7.0 Department Reports 

 
 
 
 
 

7.1. Engineering & Development 
• Planning & Development 
• Engineer’s Report 

 
Shahid Mughal 
Ron Fraser  

7.2. Community Services & FCSS  Annette Driessen 
7.3. Emergency Services Tom Thomson 
7.4. Administration 

• Communications and Marketing 
• CAO Report 

 
Tyler Russell 
Dwight Dibben 



Regular Meeting of Council 
July 13, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 
 
8.0 Council Reports 

8.1. Councillor Wheeler 
8.2. Councillor Bossert 
8.3. Councillor Fredrickson 
8.4. Councillor Nadeau 
8.5. Councillor Long 
8.6. Councillor Shular 
8.7. Mayor McLean 

 
9.0 Information Items Pages 42-65 

9.1. Economic Development Committee Meeting Minutes – April 19, 2016 43-44 
9.2. Sustainability Committee Meeting Minutes – May 24, 2016 45-46 
9.3. Childcare Operational Board – April Minutes 47-51 
9.4. Councillor Long – Economic Developers Alberta Conference Report  52-57 
9.5. June 2016 STAR Catholic Board Highlights 58 
9.6. RCMP Stats – June 2016 59-65 

 
10.0 Adjournment 

 

Page 2 of 65



Town of Drayton Valley Wednesday, June 22, 2016 
Regular Council Meeting 9 a.m. Council Chambers 
 
 

M:\Council\Agendas\Council\2016\07-13\3.1 2016-06-22 Regular Meeting of Council Minutes_DRAFT.doc 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 
THOSE PRESENT: 
Mayor McLean  
Deputy Mayor Wheeler 
Councillor Nadeau 
Councillor Long 
Councillor Bossert 
Councillor Shular 
Councillor Fredrickson 
Dwight Dibben, Chief Administrative Officer  
Annette Driessen, Director of Community 

Services 
Tom Thomson, Director of Emergency Services  
Ron Fraser, Director of Engineering & Planning 
Kevin McMillan, Assistant Director of Corporate 

Services 
S/Sgt. Malcolm Callihoo, RCMP 
 
 
 

 
Shahid Mughal, Planning & Development 

Manager  
Eric Burton, Economic Development Officer 
Chandra Dyck, Legislative Services Coordinator 
Rita Bijeau, Executive Assistant  
Tyler Russell, Communications and Marketing 

Coordinator 
Jennifer Stone, Communications and Records 

Management 
Jennifer Martin, Planning & Development Officer 
Pam Balke, Bylaw Officer 
Christian Richman, Audio/Visual 
Pam Livingston 
Mamta Lulla, Drayton Valley Western Review 
Laine Mitchell, CIBW Radio 
Members of the Public 
 
ABSENT: 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor McLean called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m.  
 
1.0 Additions to the Agenda 

There were no additions or deletions. 
 

2.0 Adoption of Agenda 
RESOLUTION #112/16 
Councillor Shular moved to adopt the June 22, 2016, Regular Meeting of Council Agenda, as presented. 
CARRIED  
 
3.0 Corrections or Amendments: 

3.1. June 1, 2016, Regular Meeting of Council Minutes 
There were no corrections or amendments to the June 1, 2016, Regular Meeting of 
Council Minutes. 
 

4.0 Adoption of: 
4.1. June 1, 2016, Regular Meeting of Council Minutes  

RESOLUTION #113/16 
Councillor Bossert moved to adopt the June 1, 2016, Regular Meeting of Council Minutes, as presented. 
CARRIED  

 
5.0 Delegations 

5.1. S/Sgt. Callihoo – April RCMP Stats 
S/Sgt. Callihoo introduced Constable Ulanowski to Council as the Community School 
Resource Officer and presented the statistics for May 2016. S/Sgt. Callihoo advised of 
discussions he has had with local industry regarding security measures they can take and 
of increased patrols within the Town. 

Page 3 of 65



Regular Meeting of Council 
Minutes of June 22, 2016 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 
6.0 Decision Items 

6.1. Appointment of Deputy Mayor 
RESOLUTION #114/16 
Councillor Wheeler moved that Council approve the appointment of Councillor Debra Bossert as Deputy 
Mayor for the Town of Drayton Valley for the period July 1, 2016 to February 28, 2017. 
CARRIED 

 
6.2. Traffic Studies 

RESOLUTION #115/16 
Councillor Bossert moved that Council approve the Drayton Valley Bus Transfer Station Transportation 
Impact Assessment dated November 2, 2015 for information. 
CARRIED 

 
RESOLUTION #116/16 
Councillor Bossert moved that Council approve the Drayton Valley Traffic Calming Study Executive 
Summary dated February 26, 2016 for information. 
CARRIED 
 

6.3. Canada Day Insurance 
RESOLUTION #117/16 
Councillor Fredrickson moved that Town Council endorses the Canada Day Festivities to be covered 
under the Town of Drayton Valley’s General Liability Insurance. 
CARRIED 

 
6.4. Town of Drayton Valley Brand and Logo 

RESOLUTION #118/16 
Councillor Nadeau moved that Council move in camera at 9:36 a.m.. 
CARRIED 

 
RESOLUTION #119/16 
Councillor Nadeau moved that Council move out of camera at 10:01 a.m. 
CARRIED 
 
RESOLUTION #120/16 
Councillor Nadeau moved that Council approve the new Town of Drayton Valley Brand and Logo as 
discussed in camera to be unveiled publicly on July 1, 2016. 
CARRIED 
 

6.5. Business License #4151, 5223 Industrial Road, Lot 17, Block 10, Plan 982 5371 
RESOLUTION #121/16 
Councillor Long moved that Council approves Business License #4151 for the proposed Autobody 
Repair Shop located at 5223 Industrial Road, with the conditions recommended by Administration. 
CARRIED 
 

6.6. Amendment to Purchasing and Tendering Policy TF-01-15, Addition of Standing Offer 
Policy TF-01-16 

RESOLUTION #122/16 
Councillor Shular moved that Council approve the amended Purchasing and Tendering Policy TF-01-15, 
as presented. 
CARRIED 
 

Ron Fraser and Annette Driessen returned to the meeting at 10:09 a.m. 
 

Page 4 of 65



Regular Meeting of Council 
Minutes of June 22, 2016 
Page 3 of 5 
 

RESOLUTION #123/16 
Councillor Shular moved that Council approve the Standing Offer Policy TF-01-16, as presented. 
CARRIED 

 
6.7. Water Rate Classes – Establishment of a Commercial Water Class/Rate 

RESOLUTION #124/16 
Councillor Wheeler moved that Council approve the establishment of a Commercial Water Rate, equal 
to the Residential Water Rate for the remainder of the 2016 fiscal year and that the 2016 Fee Schedule 
be amended in accordance with these changes. 
CARRIED 

 
Kevin McMillan returned to the meeting at 10:18 a.m. 

 
6.8. Appointment of Weed Inspectors for 2016 

RESOLUTION #125/16 
Councillor Shular moved that Council appoint Lisa Rabel, Tara McGinn and Natalie LaForest as the 
Weed Inspectors for the Town of Drayton Valley for 2016 as per the Alberta Weed Control Act. 
CARRIED 

 
Mayor McLean called a break at 10:20 a.m. 
 
Mayor McLean reconvened the meeting at 10:37 a.m. 

 
7.0 Department Reports 

7.1. Engineering and Development 
• Planning & Development 

Mr. Mughal updated Council regarding activities within the Planning and 
Development Department.  
 

• Engineer’s Report 
Mr. Fraser informed Council of the following: 

o a grant application for expansion of trails; 
o status of reports/studies which are underway; 
o update on other infrastructure and engineering activities; and 
o an update on the Open Space Park. 

 
7.2. Community Services & FCSS 

Ms. Driessen provided an update regarding summer programing, the Open Space Park, 
Fort McMurray Evacuees, and Total Works Fitness Centre. 

 
7.3. Economic Development 

Mr. Burton informed Council that tomorrow he will be hosting a discussion with financial 
leaders within the community to give their perspective on the challenges faced in the 
community for entrepreneurs in particular. Additionally, he advised Council of a national 
entrepreneurial mentorship organization called Futurpreneur. 

 
7.4. Emergency Services 

Fire Chief Thomson presented Council with the May 2016 statistics and provided detailed 
information on some incidents. He further advised of other activities within Fire Services 
and the Training Centre. Fire Chief Thomson informed Council that he has recommended 
to Brazeau County Council that a Master Plan for the airport be developed; this document 
may be jointly established. 
 

Page 5 of 65



Regular Meeting of Council 
Minutes of June 22, 2016 
Page 4 of 5 
 

7.5. Administration 
• Communications and Marketing 

Mr. Russell updated Council regarding the website and the app, along with 
statistics regarding the “Report a Problem” feature.  Mr. Russell advised that both 
will be redeveloped in line with the brand. 
 

• CAO Report 
Mr. Dibben provided a report on the following: 

o Canadian Association of Municipal Administrators Conference; 
o MGA Review session in Rocky Mountain House; 
o 2017 budget process; and 
o an overview of various other meetings. 

 
8.0 Council Reports 

8.1. Councillor Shular 
• June 14th – Waste Management Committee Meeting 
• June 16th – MLA Roundtable 
• June 17th – CETC Committee Meeting 

 
8.2. Councillor Wheeler 

• Fine Arts Night at High School 
• Holy Trinity Academy Commencement 
• Eckville Parade 
• MGA Review 
• Seniors’ Tea 
• Planning and Strategy Session in Olds 
• Wild Rose School Division Long Term Service Awards 
• Sustainability Committee 

 
8.3. Councillor Bossert 

• June 2-5th – Federal Canadian Municipalities Annual Conference 
• June 16th – MLA Roundtable 

 
8.4. Councillor Fredrickson 

• Homelessness and Poverty Reduction Committee Meeting 
• Eagle Point Blue Rapids Parks Council Annual General Meeting 
• June 14th – Waste Management Committee Meeting 
• Brazeau Seniors Foundation Meeting 

 
8.5. Councillor Nadeau 

• June 2nd – Communities in Bloom (G&P item – placement of large maple leaf) 
• June 21st – Childcare Operational Board 
• June 21st – Economic Development Committee 

 
8.6. Councillor Long 

• June 9th – Legacy Project Committee 
• June 11th – Rocky Mountain House Parade 
• June 13th – Yellowhead Regional Library 
• June 16th – MLA Roundtable 
• Drayton Valley Community Foundation Meeting 
• June 21st – Economic Development Committee Meeting 

 

Page 6 of 65



Regular Meeting of Council 
Minutes of June 22, 2016 
Page 5 of 5 
 

8.7. Mayor McLean 
• June 2-5th – Federation of Canadian Municipalities Annual Conference 
• June 7th – Seniors Tea 
• June 10th – Frank Maddock High School Graduation Ceremony 
• June 13th – MGA Review Session 
• June 16th – AUMA Summer Mayor’s Caucus 
• June 21st – National Aboriginal Day 

 
9.0 Information Items 
 

9.1. EPAC Minutes February, March, and April 2016 
9.2. Brazeau Seniors Foundation Minutes April 2016 
9.3. Yellowhead Regional Library Board Meeting Minutes March 2016 
9.4. Drayton Valley/Brazeau County Fire Services May 2016 Stats 
9.5. RCMP Stats – May 2016 

 
RESOLUTION #126/16 
Councillor Bossert moved that Council accept the above items as information. 
CARRIED  

 
10.0 Adjournment 

 
RESOLUTION #127/16 
Councillor Shular moved that Council adjourn the June 22, 2016, Regular Meeting of Council at 
11:47 a.m. 
CARRIED 
 

 
 
 
________________________________ 
MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

Page 7 of 65



Page 8 of 65



Town of Drayton Valley 
 

Delegation Request Form 

 

Name (s):    

Organization:    

Contact Number:     Contact E‐mail:    

Mailing Address:    

 
Meeting you would like to attend as a Delegation (please check all that apply)*: 

Council Meeting 

Governance & Priorities Committee Meeting

 Special Meeting/Presentation 

Administration Meeting 

* Request must be received a minimum of TWO WEEKS prior to the meeting being requested for; 
please refer to the Meeting Schedule for dates 
 
Reason for Requesting Delegation: 
(information only, request for funding, concern, etc) 
   

   

   

   

 
Additional Information Provided  

Please list the information you attached or included with your 
delegation request: 
   

   

   

 
Please indicate any preference you have for meeting: 

   

   

 
Please submit your request by: 

Fax:  780.542.5753  E‐mail:  admin‐support@draytonvalley.ca  In person:  5120‐52 ST 

Page 9 of 65



SECTION 6 
AGENDA ITEM:  6.1 Request for Temporary Road Closures for 2016 Tour of 

Alberta 
Department: Administration 

 Presented by: 
Support Staff: 

Councillor Bossert 
Dwight Dibben, CAO 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Earlier this morning the Local Organizing Committee for the 2016 Tour of Alberta presented Council with the 
tour route that was officially announced by Tour of Alberta on July 12, 2016. Council was presented with a 
request to approve the closure of roads to vehicular traffic during the cycling event from Friday, September 2 
to Saturday, September 3, 2016. 
 
The request is for Council to allow the temporary closure and barricading of the streets as indicated on the 
map and time schedule circulated by the Tour of Alberta Local Organizing Committee. 
 
The intended road closures are being proposed to ensure the safety of the athletes and spectators attending 
the Tour of Alberta and the festival activities. The roads will reopen to traffic once the Tour of Alberta 
infrastructure has been removed from the site and the company responsible for the physical setup and take 
down, Medalist Sports LLC, has completed its operations.  Times have been determined based on 
Medalists’ needs as well as the Local Organizing Committees estimates to ensure the least disruption to 
traffic, while ensuring the protection of those involved in the event. 
 
 
MOTION:  

I move that Council approves the temporary road closures and barricading as indicated on the 
map provided by the Tour of Alberta Local Organizing Committee, during the times as presented. 

Page 10 of 65



 

SECTION: 6 
AGENDA ITEM:  6.2 Intermunicipal Development Plan Amendment 

Department: Development & Planning 
 Presented by: 
Support Staff: 

Councillor Fredrickson 
Shahid Mughal, Planning & Development Manager 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Town of Drayton Valley received a referral letter from Brazeau County regarding an application they 
received to amend figures 5 & 6 of the Intermunicipal Development Plan (IDP). 
 
The intention of the application is to allow for the rezoning of lands currently occupied by the Poplar Ridge 
Manufactured Home Park and to amend the plan to show this zoning as residential. The current IDP 
identifies the lands as slated for Light Industrial in the Proposed Growth Management Strategy (figure 5) and 
the Future Land Use Concept (figure 6). The existing Manufactured Home Park is neither a compatible nor 
complementary use within the Industrial area of Poplar Ridge, and would limit expansion of the industrial 
uses in the area. A Caveat re: Development Agreement was registered on title against these lands in 1990, 
stating that the mobile home park is to be for industrial uses and that residential development is intended to 
be phased out in the future (a copy of the Caveat is attached). 
 
On May 2nd, 2016, as part of the referral process by the County, the Town responded that there are long 
standing concerns regarding the proposed amendment to the IDP. These concerns include the lack of water 
supply (hydrants) for fire suppression within the park, as well as within the industrial area, and lack of proper 
accesses in and out of the park itself.  
 
As the IDP is a joint statutory document, both municipalities are required to pass a Bylaw for any 
amendments to the plan. Brazeau County Council gave First Reading to the amended IDP at their meeting 
on April 5, 2016. 
 
The following options presented to Council concerning this application for an amendment to the IDP. 
 
OPTION A: 
Council directs Administration to prepare the documents necessary to amend the Intermunicipal 
Development Plan as requested by Brazeau County. 
 
OPTION B: 
Council directs Administration to prepare correspondence to Brazeau County which advises that the Town of 
Drayton Valley does not agree to the proposed amendment of the Intermunicipal Development Plan.  
 
OPTION C: 
Council directs Administration to send a letter to Brazeau County advising of the Town’s position that certain 
matters and concerns need to be addressed by the County and landowner prior to the Town considering any 
changes to the IDP through the appropriate Intermunicipal planning process.  
 
 
 
MOTION 
 
I move that ___________________________________. 

Page 11 of 65



 

 

Page 12 of 65



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 13 of 65



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 14 of 65



co’ 11%

Brazeau County
7401 Township Road 494, P.O. Box 77, Drayton Valley, Alberta T7A-1R1

Brzeu PHONE: (780) 542-7777 - FAX: (780) 542-7770

[aunt!J www.brazeau.ab.ca

April 11, 2016

Town of Drayton Valley Files: 16A-004 & 16A-005
5120— 52 Street, Box 6837
Drayton Valley, AB
T7A 1A1

Attention: Shahid Mughal, Planning & Development Manager

RE: PROPOSED BYLAW AMENDMENTS — BYLAW 898-16 & BYLAW 899-16
PROPOSAL: Amendment to the “Brazeau County and Town of Drayton Valley

Intermunicipal Development Plan” and Amendment to the “Poplar Ridge Area
Structure Plan”

LEGAL DESC: Lot A, Plan 912 1068 within S Yz 18-49-7-W5M

APPLICANT: 1051684 Alberta Ltd.

Brazeau County has received applications to amend the following:
• File 16A-004 - Bylaw 898-16 for the amendment to the Brazeau County and Town of Drayton

Valley Intermunicipal Development Plan (IDP); and
• File 16A-005 - Bylaw 899-16 for the amendment to the Poplar Ridge Area Structure Plan (ASP).

The applicant has indicated the reason for the amendment applications is to amend the current IDP and
ASP to allow for the continued operation of the existing Poplar Ridge Manufactured Home Park.

Attached are draft copies of Bylaw 898-16 and Bylaw 899-16 for your review and comment.

First Readings of Bylaw 898-16 and Bylaw 899-16 were heard by Council on April 5, 2016. The Public
Hearing for Bylaw 898-16 (IDP) has been scheduled on June 21, 2016 at 10:00 a.m. and the Public
Hearing for Bylaw 899-16 (ASP) has been scheduled on June 21, 2016 at 10:15 am., followed by Second
and Third Readings.

As per Section 5.2.4 of the IDP, please provide comment within 21 days. In the event we do not hear
from you by May 2, 2016, or we do not receive an extension request, it will be assumed there is no
comment or objection.

Please respond by fax to 780-542-7770 or via email reply to planning@brazeau.ab.ca, referencing File
No: 16A-004 and/or 16A-005.

Further, please advise Brazeau County’s Planning & Development Department of the dates and times
scheduled for the Town of Drayton Valley’s First Reading, Public Hearing, and Second and Third Readings
for the amendment to the IDP. We will have staff available to attend as a resource or to receive
questions/provide information.

Page 1 of 2

Page 15 of 65



Brnzenu
count!J

Brazeau County
7401 Township Road 494, P.O. Box 77, Drayton Valley, Alberta T7A-1R1

PHONE: (780) 542-7777 - FAX: (780) 542-7770
www.brazeau.ab.ca

If you require further information or wish to discuss this proposal further, please contact the Planning
and Development Department at 780-542-2667.

Sincerely,

Ma tino Verhaeghe, RPP, MCI

Director of Planning & Development

MV/nc

End.

0I

Page 2 of 2

Page 16 of 65



Land Location Map

Municipal Address: 6402 52 Ave.

Lot A Plan 912 1068
within S 1/2 18-49-7-W5M

\

ibCountt

f\\!p 49

!_)ray ton

8

Page 17 of 65



40-J
4

w
0z

4
D

4
C

o
D

-J
U

.)
ZU

Page 18 of 65



Poplar Ridge
Manufactured Home

Park

V

We an

ates /
—

iates7
1gRa —95

6!E74i

_____

, j

ci

Brazeau County and Town of Drayton Valley

Intermunicipal Development Plan Area

It

5—

pr
d

-u
rJ

JJL

r
D

H
i-i

thfiEkcR

th

81

Ti

. L
11’,,7

Ki

GEts

•i Ci

c
1 -I

U

)

A

U

I

.9

L

D

IAI

‘1 l7l

r$rayto

U

RexIo k
Subdvti on

ad

c.

E
a

Il -l

- — -
— L_ —

-J

F

-,

0

I 4
I.

_ ,

r7w

I.

‘- 11_

pp

Li

- -i

1

Tvi *Gr
E

*

ii

4

Page 19 of 65



I

Page 20 of 65



BRAZEAU COUNTY

BYLAW NO: 898-16

BEING A BYLAW OF BRAZEAU COUNTY, IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, TO AMEND BRAZEAU
COUNTY AND TOWN OF DRAYTON VALLEY INTERMUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN BYLAW
NO. 779-11

WHEREAS, Council of Brazeau County deems it expedient and proper, under the authority of
and in accordance with the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26 and
amendments thereto, to make certain amendments to Brazeau County and Town of Drayton
Valley Intermunicipal Development Plan Bylaw 779-11; and

WHEREAS, the public participation requirements of Section 692 of the Municipal Government
Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26, have been complied with;

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of Brazeau County, duly assembled, enacts as follows:

1. That Figure 5 Proposed Growth Management Strategy Map of Bylaw 779-11 is hereby
amended to identify Poplar Ridge Manufactured Home Park as existing, as shown on
attached Schedule ‘A’ (“the lands”); and

2. That Figure 6 Future Land Use Concept Map of Bylaw 779-11 is hereby amended to
identify Poplar Ridge Manufactured Home Park as Country Residential, as shown on
attached Schedule ‘B’ (“the lands”);

3. That this Bylaw shall take effect upon the final passing thereof.

READ a first time this 5 day of April , 2016,

READ a second time this day of

___________,

20,

READ a third time and finally passed this _day of

___________,

20_.

Reeve

Chief Administrative Officer

Page 21 of 65



S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

‘
A

’
I
_
_
_

0

HH

I
C

]

G
&

1
C

o
u
rse

Ii

T
p.R

d.403

T
p.R

d.412

H

-1
0
0

rn

C
-
-

-

I
—

L
O

O
dl,u

—

-
/‘

I
U

I

-III
L

L
L

/
V

I,

_
_

I

iinwL
I

—
7

0
100

n
,

L
r1

‘
EE_

T
h
-J

l
i
i
i

UbHr

0

-
-

_
_
_

z
J

_____________

E
ogIc

P
o
rt

-
/
‘

P
ro

v
!rco

I
P

ork

_
_

I

UjUJJJLLLI
W

A
Y

_
_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

/K’
K!

-
1
0
0

—
0

e
N

.—

0

U

0

LU0

1p.R
d.485

—

________

f
l

0
C

0

I
0

0

0

N
ovem

ber
2011

t
u

(fl.I
L

.c
s
v

a
tt

/
/

2
0

3
9

2
0

5
9

C
o

m
p

act
R

esid
en

tial

S
u
b
u
rb

an
E

states

C
ountry

R
esid

en
tial

N
on

R
esid

en
tial

R
eferral

A
rea

I
I

-7

B
razeau

C
o
u

n
ty

T
o
w

n
o
f

D
ray

to
n

V
alley

G
ro

w
th

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

P
lan

F
ig

u
re

5

P
ro

p
o
se

d
G

ro
w

th
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

S
tra

te
g
y

,
,

Page 22 of 65



—

IGQi1
C

anse

o
\

L
o
rd

1

[
_
_
-

}L
T

UIL
4

L
I
7

0

1i
w
mw

E
E
.

L
w

I

9

I

c
i
i

10

4
s
S

E

H
-
.

L
i

T
i.R

d.4D
4

‘
I

jS
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

’B
’f

P’-
0

\4.•
fl’

E
b

1
0

-

a

-

I

_
-
1

--n:I
‘
h

.
1

fr
T

p.R
d.413

0

E
T

4
O

T
p
d
4
9
lI

0

(
I

BO
IfA

W
I

22
/

L
/

/

V

T
p.R

d.485
—

\j

0

-
0

N
o

v
em

b
er

2011

W
L

c
x

v
itt

(j
P

lu
a
m

ie
g

C
o

u
s
tw

e
la

\

C
ountry

R
esidential

S
uburban

a
i

C
ountry

R
esidential

C
om

pact
R

esidential

R
ural

Industrial

L
ight

Industrial

H
ighw

ay
/

B
u

sin
ess

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
om

m
ercial

C
om

m
ercial

1
P

ublic
&

Institutional

O
pen

S
p

ace

A
griculture

R
eferral

A
rea

7

B
ra

z
e
a
u

C
o
u

n
ty

T
o
w

n
o
f

D
ray

to
n

V
alley

G
ro

w
th

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t
P

lan

F
ig

u
re

6

F
u
tu

re
L

an
d

U
se

C
o
n
c
e
p
t

Page 23 of 65



BRAZEAU COUNTY

BYLAW NO: 899-16

BEING A BYLAW OF BRAZEAU COUNTY, IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, TO ADOPT THE

REVISED POPLAR RIDGE AREA STRUCTURE PLAN

WHEREAS, Council of Brazeau County deems it expedient and proper to adopt the attached
revised Poplar Ridge Area Structure Plan, under the authority of and in accordance with the
Municipal GovernmentAct, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26 and amendments thereto; and

WHEREAS, the public participation requirements of Section 692 of the Municipal Government
Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26, have been complied with;

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of Brazeau County, duly assembled, enacts as follows:

1. Bylaw 726-10, Bylaw 773-11, and any other amending bylaws relating to the Poplar Ridge
Area Structure Plan are hereby repealed for administrative purposes and replaced with
Bylaw 899-16 entitled “Poplar Ridge Area Structure Plan”, as attached hereto.

2. That this Bylaw shall take effect upon the final passing thereof.

READ a first time this S day of April, 2016,

READ a second time this day of

___________,

20_,

READ a third time and finally passed this day of

___________,20_.

Reeve

Chief Administrative Officer

Page 24 of 65



 
  

Page 25 of 65



 

Page 26 of 65



 
 

 
 

 

Page 27 of 65



Page 28 of 65



Page 29 of 65



Page 30 of 65



Page 31 of 65



Page 32 of 65



SECTION 6 
AGENDA ITEM:  6.3 Assessment Review & Property Tax Reduction Request 

Department: Administration 
 Presented by: 
Support Staff: 

Councillor Nadeau 
Dwight Dibben, CAO 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Correspondence from an industrial landowner has been received requesting a reduction in 
property taxes for industrially-zoned vacant lands within Town limits. The correspondence also 
outlines concerns with the property assessment suggesting it is inaccurate.  
 
Pursuant to Section 347 of the Municipal Government Act, Council can cancel, reduce, refund or 
defer taxes under the following guidelines: 

347(1) If a council considers it equitable to do so, it may, generally or with respect to a 
particular taxable property or business or a class of taxable property or business, do one 
or more of the following, with or without conditions: 

(a) Cancel or reduce tax arrears; 
(b) Cancel or refund all or part of a tax; 
(c) Defer the collection of a tax. 

(2) A Council may phase in a tax increase or decrease resulting from the preparation of 
any new assessment. 

 
Following adoption of the Interim 2016 Budget, Town Council, after undertaking additional 
consultations and receiving other representations, finalized its 2016 Budget by reducing the 
proposed tax increase from 2.75% to 0%. 
 
With respect to concerns received concerning property assessment, the landowners have been 
advised of the option to file these concerns with the Assessment Review Board and the timelines 
associated with that option. 
 
Administration has prepared two options for Council’s consideration. 
 
OPTIONS: 

A:  Council directs Administration to review and present options for a change to the 
non-residential tax rate for 2016. 

B:  Council denies the request to reconsider the 2016 non-residential tax rate. 
 
 
MOTION:  
I move that _______________________. 
 

 

Page 33 of 65



Page 34 of 65

ChandraD
Text Box
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, RSA 2000, Chapter F-25, section 17(4)

ChandraD
Text Box
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, RSA 2000, Chapter F-25, section 17(4)



SECTION 6 
AGENDA ITEM:  6.4 Request to amend Bylaw 2007/15/D, 50th Street Service 

Road Local Improvement Project 
Department: Administration 

 Presented by: 
Support Staff: 

Councillor Long 
Dwight Dibben, CAO 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Correspondence has been reviewed requesting that Town Council consider an amendment to 
Bylaw 2007/15/D in order to re-allocate some of the costs of the service road to the Town. 
 
A Local Improvement is initiated at the request of the property owner and at the permission of 
Council for construction projects that are considered to be of greater benefit to that area than to 
the municipality as a whole. The project is to be paid, in whole or in part, by the property owners in 
that specified area. Once the Borrowing Bylaw has been passed, the municipality issues a 
debenture to the Alberta Capital Finance Authority to cover the cost of the project. The cost of the 
construction can be added to the property tax notices, a levy, as a means to recoup the costs of 
the local improvement, including interest charges, associated with the debenture. The interest rate 
is set by the Alberta Capital Finance Authority (ACFA) and is based on current market rates. The 
length of the term is based on the expected useful life of the improvement. The municipality does 
not charge any fees/premium or gain any benefit from collecting these levies. 100% of the 
amounts collected from property owners from these levies go towards paying off the debenture 
(principle and interest) issued by ACFA. 
 
Bylaw 2007/15/D was established in 2007 at the request of the original owner of the property. The 
levy is for the construction of a service road in front of three lots along 50th Street. Two of the lots 
sold in 2012 with payment being made by the two owners to the present day . 
 
Currently the Town of Drayton Valley has five local improvement levies, including this one, for a 
total outstanding amount in excess of $1.3 Million. Any consideration by Council to amend the 
Bylaw would likely result in further and similar reconsideration requests from other landowners. 
 
Administration has prepared two options for Council’s consideration. 
 
OPTIONS: 

A:  Council directs Administration to draft an amendment to Bylaw 2007/15D. 
B:  Council denies the request to amend Bylaw 2007/15D.  

 
MOTION:  
I move that _______________________. 
 

 

Page 35 of 65



Page 36 of 65

ChandraD
Text Box
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, RSA 2000, Chapter F-25, section 17(4)

ChandraD
Text Box
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, RSA 2000, Chapter F-25, section 17(4)



Page 37 of 65



Page 38 of 65



Page 39 of 65



Page 40 of 65



Page 41 of 65



Information Items 
 

9.0 Information Items Pages 42-65 
 

9.1. Economic Development Committee Meeting Minutes – April 19, 2016 43-44 
9.2. Sustainability Committee Meeting Minutes – May 24, 2016 45-46 
9.3. Childcare Operational Board – April Minutes 47-51 
9.4. Councillor Long – Economic Developers Alberta Conference Report  52-57 
9.5. June 2016 STAR Catholic Board Highlights 58 
9.6. RCMP Stats – June 2016 59-65 

 
 
MOTION: 
 
I move that Town Council accept the above items as information. 
 

Page 42 of 65



 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

  
 
 

Economic Development Committee Meeting 
Tuesday, April 19, 2016, 12:00 p.m. 

Town of Drayton Valley Conference Room #2 
 

 
Meeting Notes 

 
Present: Mayor McLean, Councillor Nicole Nadeau, Councillor Graham Long, Dwight Dibben, Eric Burton, Sabine 

Larcher   
   
1.0 Call to Order     

Councillor Nadeau called the meeting to order at 12:09 p.m. 
 

2.0 Additions or Deletions to Agenda  
There were no additions to the agenda. 
 

3.0 Adoption of Agenda 
Councillor Long moved to adopt the Agenda as presented. 
Carried 
 

4.0 Approval of April 11, 2016, Committee Meeting Notes 
Councillor Long advised that the next meeting should say “April” and not “May.” 
 
Councillor Long moved to approve the April 11, 2016, Meeting Notes as amended. 
Carried  
 

5.0 Discussion Items 
5.1 EDA Conference Debrief 

The Committee shared information from the recent EDA Conference.  
 
Mr. Dibben entered the meeting at 12:16 p.m. 
Mayor McLean entered the meeting at 12:19 p.m. 
Councillor Nadeau called a break at 1:39 p.m. 
Mr. Dibben left the meeting at 1:47 p.m. 
Councillor Nadeau reconvened the meeting at 1:49 p.m. 
 

5.2 Revised Economic Development Strategy 
The Committee reviewed the Economic Development Strategy and suggested amendments. The 
document is scheduled to be presented to Council at the Governance & Priorities Meeting on 
June 1, 2016. 
 
Mayor McLean left the meeting at 2:32 p.m. 
 

5.3 Community Profile – Recap and Overview 
The Committee reviewed the Community Profile and suggested amendments. The document is 
scheduled to be presented to Council at the Governance & Priorities Meeting on June 1, 2016. 

Page 43 of 65



Economic Development Committee Meeting 
 

April 19, 2016 
 

 

 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
6.0 Other Business 

 
7.0 Items for Next Meeting  

 
8.0 Next Meeting Date 

TBA 
 

9.0 Adjournment  
Councillor Long moved to adjourn the meeting at 3:10 p.m. 
Carried  

Page 44 of 65



 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

           
 
 
 

Sustainability Committee Meeting 
Tuesday, May 24, 2016, 1:30 p.m. 

Town of Drayton Valley Conference Room #1 
 

 
Meeting Notes 

 
Present: Councillor Fayrell Wheeler, Councillor Nicole Nadeau, Ron Fraser, Danette Moulé, Sabine 

Larcher 
Absent:  Mayor Glenn McLean (Ex Officio), Councillor Dean Shular, Dwight Dibben 
   
1.0 Call to Order     

Councillor Wheeler called the meeting to order at 1:36 p.m. 
 
2.0 Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

There were no additions or deletions. 
 
3.0 Adoption of Agenda 

Councillor Nadeau moved to adopt the Agenda as presented. 
Carried 

 
4.0 Approval of April 25, 2016, Committee Meeting Notes 

Councillor Wheeler moved to approve the April 25, 2016, Committee Meeting Notes as 
presented. 
Carried  

 
5.0 Discussion Items 
  

5.1 Community Energy Plan Update 
Ms. Moulé informed the Committee that the consultant will send the results shortly, 
which will then be shared with the Committee and presented to Council at a 
Governance & Priorities meeting. The Committee discussed the public input workshop 
and when to host it. 
 

5.2 Smart Meters Update 
Mr. Fraser provided information on three smart meter systems and explained 
installation, maintenance and costs. The Committee discussed possible scenarios for 
installations of these meters. The Committee recommended discussing this item at a 
Leadership meeting. 
 

5.3 Home Energy Audit Tool Update 
This tool will be part of a solar panel proposal that is being worked on by the CETC. 
 
 

Page 45 of 65



Sustainability Committee Meeting 
 

May 24, 2016 
 

 

 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

5.4 Reporting Drayton’s GHG Emissions to CDP 
Ms. Moulé informed the Committee about the non-profit organization CDP that is 
collecting data on GHG emissions. The Town can submit a GHG emission report and 
connect with other communities in the network. The Committee recommended 
discussing this item at a Leadership meeting. 
 

5.5 Green Acreages Guide 
Councillor Wheeler informed the Committee about this guide that explains options to 
green one’s home. The Committee suggested partnering with Brazeau County in 
promoting the Green Acreages Guide.  
 

5.6 Review Sustainability Plan 
This item was deferred. 

 
6.0 Other Business 

The Committee discussed beneficial locations for the custom-made bike racks. Ms. Moulé will 
circulate a list with possible locations for feedback. 
 

7.0 Information items 
 

8.0 Items for Next Meeting 
- Review Sustainability Plan 

 
9.0 Next Meeting Date 

Monday, June 20, 2016, 1:30 p.m. – 3:00 p.m., Room 1 
 

10.0 Adjournment  
The meeting was adjourned at 2:50 p.m. 
 

Page 46 of 65



Page 47 of 65



Page 48 of 65



Page 49 of 65



Page 50 of 65



Page 51 of 65



Conference Report  

Council Member: Graham Long 

Conference/Workshop Attended: Economic Developers of Alberta 

Date of Conference: April 2016 

Information Presented:  

General Comments: 
This is a very busy, and very large, gathering of Economic Development professionals and elected 
officials from across Alberta and further afield. As such, it has value not only for the learning 
opportunities it provides, but also as a chance to promote some of the things we are doing in Drayton 
Valley face-to-face with the kind of audience we often find ourselves trying to reach.  
 
The sessions themselves cover a wide range of topics related to Economic Development. I found the 
conference worthwhile and would certainly consider re attending. That said, for the second year in a 
row I found the one session aimed specifically at elected officials to be something of a disappointment. 
It was, in this case, a quite well put together session on leadership, however, its relationship to 
Economic Development seemed tenuous at best. 

 
Session 1: Balancing Downtown Vitality with Suburban Growth 
This session looked and at importance of creating and maintaining a healthy downtown core as the 
heart of the community. That means attracting retailers and service providers to locate downtown. That 
in turn will lead to increased use of the area by the public. 
 
Most small communities start out with all or almost all of their retail business located within a couple of 
blocks of each other downtown. However, once the population begins to approach the 8,000-10,000 
mark there is pressure for suburban growth as people look for services closer to home and as a result 
the downtown starts to falter. Drayton Valley has been in this position for some years. 
 
Suggested steps for a vibrant downtown … 

• Ensure the support of existing businesses 
• Identify a champion for downtown retailers (ideally this should be the Chamber of Commerce) 
• Define exactly where downtown is and focus your efforts there 
• Downtown should be a place for place making, heritage and specialty shopping 
• Where possible reduce red tape and simplify processes 
• One way streets are NOT recommended 
• Hours of operation matter 

 
There are three challenges to attracting retailers: 

• Retail recruitment is often subject to population thresholds deemed critical by large chains. 
• Rural areas need to overcome retailer fears that dispersed populations are harder to serve than 

Page 52 of 65



Page 2 of 6 

 

concentrated urban areas. 
• Remote markets need to overcome logistics of retailer distribution networks. 

 
The chart below shows a target for a reasonable amount of retail space in a community like ours (note 
that this is total retail square footage, not just downtown. 
 

 
 
Generally the role of local government in retail attraction and retention is as follows … 

• Identify areas for potential growth 
• Mobilize support for retail recruitment and coordinate citizen involvement 
• Establish direct contact with prospective merchants 
• Actively promote the community 
• Be prepared to provide support (possibly financial incentives) if required. 

 

Page 53 of 65



Page 3 of 6 

 

 
 
Session 2: Todd Hirsch, ATB Financial Annual Economic Forecast 
This presentation is one of the highlights of the conference as one of Alberta’s top economists attempts 
to tell us what’s going to happen over the next 12 months and beyond. Hirsch would be the first to admit 
that economic forecasting is not an exact science. At the same conference in 2015 he predicted that oil 
would now be somewhere above $70 a barrel. However, his command of the information available is 
impressive and he is likely to be right more often than most.  
 
The entire speech, which runs a little over 40 minutes, can be found on the EDA YouTube channel. I 
recommend checking it out. The information is useful, and Hirsch is also an entertaining speaker. 
The following is a list of a few of the high points. 

• The Canadian economy is looking stronger thanks to a low dollar which helps exports.  
• No increase in interest rates from the Bank of Canada is anticipated before 2017 at the earliest. 
• The dollar will stay soft due to weak oil prices, probably in the range of 72-78 cents US. 
• Oil prices will strengthen, but only a little, and will be in the $50-$55 range by the end of the 

year. That will bring back a degree of stability, but not growth. The next few months will be the 
toughest as producers struggle to get costs down. 

• It’s important to remember that recession is a normal part of the economic cycle. 

Page 54 of 65



Page 4 of 6 

 

• Looking further ahead we can expect modest annual growth of around 2 per cent over the next 
five years. 

 
Session 3: Jeff Gaulin CAPP   Being Resourceful with our Resources 
This was an at times grim reminder of some of the challenges facing Alberta’s (and Drayton Valley’s) 
biggest economic driver. In the current downturn oil has fallen from $100+ to the $40 range per barrel. 
Natural gas has not fared much better dropping from $3.75 to $2.75 over roughly the same period. The 
reasons for this are increased supply from a number of areas, including the United States. In fact the 
US, traditionally our biggest customer, has now become our biggest competitor. American oil production 
has increased by 3.7 million barrels per day since 2008. US natural gas production has also increased 
significantly. 

Falling oil prices have so far led to a $33 billion decline in capital investment, a $60 billion decline in 
earnings and the loss of 100,000 jobs in Canada. 

Those numbers underscore the need for pipelines to get Alberta’s oil to the global market place. There 
are currently three projects on the table with a combined projected private capital investment in the area 
of $30 billion. Those are the Transmountain project ($.68 billion) the Northern Gateway pipeline ($7.9 
billion) and the Energy East Pipeline ($15.7 billion). 

Session 4: Resilience Through Innovation  
This session served as an introduction to and overview of services provided by a number of federal 
agencies operating in the area of economic development. There was useful background information on 
the operations of, among others, Western Economic Diversification. 

One program with which I was not previously familiar is operated by the Natural Sciences and 
Engineering Research Council of Canada (NSERC). NSERC supports university and college students 
in their advanced studies, promotes and supports discovery research and fosters innovation by 
encouraging Canadian companies to participate and invest in post-secondary research projects. 

NSERC works with companies to develop solutions and grow businesses through a suite of partnership 
offerings connecting companies to experts at Canada’s universities and colleges.  

There are a number of grants available for students and faculty conducting research that will have 
practical real world applications. There are several areas marked for research priority. Those include 
Natural Resources and Energy and Forestry and Wood Products.  NSERC funding supports graduate 
student research in these areas.  Projects currently under way include processing wood waste into a 
green replacement for coal, which is an area we have been looking at for some years in Drayton Valley. 

Unfortunately, NorQuest College is not currently on the list of approved educational institutions for 
NSERC grants, however, NAIT, SAIT, Red Deer College, the University of Alberta and Athabasca 
University, along with a number of others, are. 

 

Page 55 of 65



Page 5 of 6 

 

Correlation to Approved Town Plans/Policies and Council Vision 
Ex. Social Development Plan (SDP), Community Sustainability Plan (CSP), Economic 
Development Strategy (EDS), Municipal Development Plan (MDP), Housing Index Study (HIS), 
Recreation & Culture Master Plan (RCP), etc. 

Session 1: Balancing Downtown Vitality with Suburban Growth: EDS, MDP, CSP 
Session 2: Session 2: Todd Hirsch, ATB Financial Annual Economic Forecast: N/A 
Session 3: Jeff Gaulin CAPP   Being Resourceful with our Resources:  
Session 4: Resilience Through Innovation:  

Recommendation(s) for Council consideration: 

Session 1 Balancing Downtown Vitality with Suburban Growth:  
1) Is it time to revisit downtown revitalization? Several years ago a previous council spent 

significant money on this process, which I believe was never fully completed. I’d be leery of 
injecting similar funds given the current economic climate, however, a couple of the steps 
outlined above (reduce red tape, strengthen the Chamber of Commerce) could be undertaken 
using existing resources at little or no cost to the municipality. 

Session 2: Todd Hirsch, ATB Financial Annual Economic Forecast 
2) Information such as this may prove useful during budget deliberations. Hirsch also writes The 

Owl a daily newsletter. You can subscribe online at www.atb.com.  
Session 3: Jeff Gaulin CAPP   Being Resourceful with our Resources 

3) Speaking at the same conference Minister Deron Bilous was very clear that he recognizes the 
need for pipelines (note the plural) to get our oil to market so there appears to be little need to 
lobby the province to support their development. However, the situation federally is less clear. I 
think there may be value in trying to work through FCM to get the message across to a broader 
Canadian audience. It may well be that others are already doing this, but adding our voice to the 
conversation can only be a positive. It’s also, I believe, a move that would be seen as a positive 
by a significant number of our residents. 

Session 4: Resilience Through Innovation 
4) It would certainly be to our benefit if anyone studying or working through the Clean Energy and 

Technology Centre was able to access NSERC funding. The first step would be to find out why 
NorQuest is not on the list of approved colleges. If approval for NorQuest is unachievable we 
should examine what could be done with other potential partners (NAIT, Athabasca University 
etc.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56 of 65

http://www.atb.com/


Page 6 of 6 

 

Identify Partners and/or External Resources: 

Session 1 Balancing Downtown Vitality with Suburban Growth: Chamber of Commerce, 
Retail Merchants, Downtown businesses 
Session 2: Todd Hirsch, ATB Financial Annual Economic Forecast: N/A 
Session 3: Jeff Gaulin CAPP   Being Resourceful with our Resources: Potential partners 
are Edson, Whitecourt and other neighbouring resource based towns, Brazeau County, 
Federation of Canadian Municipalities, AUMA etc. 
Session 4: Resilience Through Innovation: Natural Sciences and Engineering Research 
Council of Canada ( www. nserc-crsng.gc.ca ); NorQuest College, Clean Energy Technology 
Centre, other educational institutions (SAIT, NAIT, etc) 

For Administrative Use Only: 
Date 
Received: 

July 5, 2016 Date 
Reviewed: 

 

Item(s) for Administration policy or procedural consideration: 

1)  
2)  

 

Page 57 of 65



  

DATES TO REMEMBER 
Next Board Meeting 
Wednesday, August 17 
10:30 a.m. 
STAR Central Office 
4906 50 Ave., Leduc, AB 
The public is welcome at all 
Board meetings.  

Board of Trustees 
Thalia Hibbs, Chair 
Lacombe 
John Tomkinson, Vice Chair 
Wetaskiwin 
Dan Chalifoux 
Beaumont 
Sandra Bannard 
Drayton Valley 
Susan Kathol 
Drayton Valley 
Karen Richert 
Leduc 
Michelle Lamer 
Leduc 
Dan Svitich 
Ponoka 
Henry Effon 
Wetaskiwin 
 

  June 
2016 

 

New Board Chair and Vice Chair 
Named for 2016-2017 
STAR Catholic’s Board of Trustees selected 
Lacombe Trustee Thalia Hibbs as its Board 
Chair. Wetaskiwin Trustee John Tomkinson 
was elected as the Board’s Vice Chair. 
 
Beaumont Reconfiguration Approved 
The Board approved Beaumont 
reconfiguration to take effect upon the 
opening of École Mother d'Youville School 
in 2017. 
The new configuration will establish STAR 
Catholic’s existing Beaumont school — 
Académie Saint-André Academy — as a 
Kindergarten to Grade 4 school, while 
École Mother d'Youville School will be 
grades 5 to 9. Both schools will have full 
English and French Immersion tracks and 
busing will be provided in town and rural 
areas to both schools, based on the current 
transportation funding model. 
 
2016 - 2017 Division Budget 
Approved 
The Board approved the Division’s $43.4 
million budget as presented. 
 
Ward Review to commence this fall 
The Board approved proceeding with a 
review of its electoral wards and board 
composition. This process will include 
extensive public consultation and be 
concluded by February 2017. 
 
Revised Prayer and Patriotism Policy 
Approved 
The Board gave Policy 22 - Divisional 
Prayer and Patriotism third and final 
reading. 
 

 
École Mother d’Youville School 
The Board was updated on the 
construction of École Mother d’Youville 
School, following a groundbreaking 
ceremony held June 3, 2016 in Beaumont.  
 
Value Scoping confirmed for Father 
Lacombe Catholic School 
The Board was updated that the Division 
has received confirmation from the 
Government of Alberta that a value scoping 
of the Father Lacombe Catholic School 
facility will take place this fall.  
 
School Painting Approved 
The Board approved the use of Restricted 
Operating Reserves to a maximum of 
$150,000 to address pressing painting 
needs in schools in the Division. 
 
Transportation Survey 
The Board received Busing Satisfaction 
Survey results. The response rate was 
substantially higher than last year and 
results were positive. A campaign to 
promote bus safety amongst students will 
commence in the fall.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 58 of 65

mailto:john.tomkinson@starcatholic.ab.ca
mailto:thalia.hibbs@starcatholic.ab.ca
mailto:dan.chalifoux@starcatholic.ab.ca
mailto:sandra.bannard@starcatholic.ab.ca
mailto:susan.kathol@starcatholic.ab.ca
mailto:karen.richert@starcatholic.ab.ca
mailto:michelle.lamer@starcatholic.ab.ca
mailto:dan.svitich@starcatholic.ab.ca
mailto:henry.effon@starcatholic.ab.ca


All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

CATEGORY Trend 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

     Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 0 0 0 0

     Robbery 1 2 5 2 0

     Sexual Assaults 11 1 5 5 9

     Other Sexual Offences 1 2 3 3 4

     Assault 97 80 72 59 46

     Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 8 1 2 1 1

     Extortion 0 0 1 0 0

     Criminal Harassment 16 10 8 10 8

     Uttering Threats 31 23 19 21 19

     Other Persons 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL PERSONS 165 119 115 101 87

     Break & Enter 60 36 40 35 57

     Theft of Motor Vehicle 54 34 54 25 41

     Theft Over $5,000 6 2 5 5 4

     Theft Under $5,000 125 174 188 121 137

     Possn Stn Goods 25 14 26 8 14

     Fraud 23 26 25 25 20

     Arson 2 1 1 1 0

     Mischief To Property 132 126 155 148 106

TOTAL PROPERTY 427 413 494 368 379

     Offensive Weapons 9 8 13 9 3

     Public Order 0 1 0 0 0

     Disturbing the peace 72 64 45 42 22

     OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 103 102 109 124 89

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 184 175 167 175 114

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE 776 707 776 644 580

Wednesday, July 06, 2016

Drayton Valley Municipal Detachment

Statistical Comparison

January to June: 2012 ‐ 2016

This Report is generated from the PROS database and current scoring of files.  All homicide files are not included in this report.

Page 59 of 65



All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

CATEGORY Trend 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

     Drug Enforcement ‐ Production 0 0 0 0 0

     Drug Enforcement ‐ Possession 28 22 29 18 13

     Drug Enforcement ‐ Trafficking 6 7 9 17 5

     Drug Enforcement ‐ Other 0 0 1 0 2

Total Drugs 34 29 39 35 20

     Federal ‐ General 9 5 2 4 4

TOTAL FEDERAL 43 34 41 39 24

     Liquor Act 23 15 8 8 8

     Other Provincial Stats 33 45 49 50 55

Total Provincial Stats 56 60 57 58 63

     Municipal By‐laws Traffic 2 5 5 4 1

     Municipal By‐laws 78 59 41 44 44

Total Municipal 80 64 46 48 45

     Fatals 2 3 0 0 0

     Injury MVC 5 4 4 3 6

     Property Damage MVC (Reportable) 185 147 189 135 112

     Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) 22 20 20 22 13

TOTAL MVC 214 174 213 160 131

Provincial Traffic 430 271 283 210 206

Other Traffic 13 8 2 4 8

Criminal Code Traffic 77 49 58 42 32

Common Police Activities

     False Alarms 146 125 117 146 141

     False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act 40 50 39 51 53

     Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property 103 107 19 55 48

     Persons Reported Missing 1 9 5 5 20

     Spousal Abuse ‐ Survey Code 89 73 70 85 87

January to June: 2012 ‐ 2016

Drayton Valley Municipal Detachment

Statistical Comparison

This Report is generated from the PROS database and current scoring of files.  All homicide files are not included in this report.

Page 60 of 65



January to June Trend 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

     Fatals 2 3 0 0 0

     Injury MVC 5 4 4 3 6

     Property Damage MVC (Reportable) 185 147 189 135 112

     Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) 22 20 20 22 13

Total MVC 214 174 213 160 131

January to June Trend 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Impaired Operation*

Roadside Suspensions ‐ alcohol related ‐ No charge** 13 8 2 4 8

Occupant Restraint/Seatbelt Violations** 4 5 3 3 0

Speeding Violations** 19 17 12 7 28

Intersection Related Violations** 18 7 6 7 7

Driving without Due Care or Attention*

Other Moving Traffic*

Other Non‐Moving Violation** 99 44 48 43 46

Other CC Traffic*** 13 10 6 5 6
    *include "Cleared by Charge" and "Cleared Other"     **"Actual"    ***"Reported"

Currently Not Available

Currently Not Available

Drayton Valley Municipal Detachment

5 Year Traffic Summary ‐ January to June

Currently Not Available

This Report is generated from the PROS database and current scoring of files.  All homicide files are not included in this report.

Page 61 of 65



All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

CATEGORY Trend 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

     Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 0 0 0 0

     Robbery 1 0 0 0 0

     Sexual Assaults 3 0 1 0 2

     Other Sexual Offences 0 0 0 0 1

     Assault 23 6 7 9 4

     Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 1 0 1 0 0

     Extortion 0 0 0 0 0

     Criminal Harassment 3 2 5 2 0

     Uttering Threats 5 5 1 5 2

     Other Persons 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL PERSONS 36 13 15 16 9

     Break & Enter 11 4 6 8 4

     Theft of Motor Vehicle 11 4 8 3 10

     Theft Over $5,000 1 0 0 1 0

     Theft Under $5,000 28 35 51 34 22

     Possn Stn Goods 5 2 6 2 3

     Fraud 5 5 7 4 2

     Arson 0 0 0 0 0

     Mischief To Property 23 30 32 26 13

TOTAL PROPERTY 84 80 110 78 54

     Offensive Weapons 4 0 2 3 0

     Public Order 0 0 0 0 0

     Disturbing the peace 0 15 5 6 0

     OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 26 13 16 20 11

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 30 28 23 29 11

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE 150 121 148 123 74

Wednesday, July 06, 2016

Drayton Valley Municipal Detachment

Statistical Comparison

June: 2012 ‐ 2016

This Report is generated from the PROS database and current scoring of files.  All homicide files are not included in this report.

Page 62 of 65



All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

CATEGORY Trend 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

     Drug Enforcement ‐ Production 0 0 0 0 0

     Drug Enforcement ‐ Possession 4 2 10 2 3

     Drug Enforcement ‐ Trafficking 1 1 0 3 1

     Drug Enforcement ‐ Other 0 0 1 0 1

Total Drugs 5 3 11 5 5

     Federal ‐ General 0 0 0 2 1

TOTAL FEDERAL 5 3 11 7 6

     Liquor Act 6 3 2 1 2

     Other Provincial Stats 7 5 11 9 9

Total Provincial Stats 13 8 13 10 11

     Municipal By‐laws Traffic 0 0 1 0 1

     Municipal By‐laws 28 20 9 11 6

Total Municipal 28 20 10 11 7

     Fatals 0 0 0 0 0

     Injury MVC 0 0 1 1 0

     Property Damage MVC (Reportable) 40 20 24 19 12

     Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) 4 4 2 5 3

TOTAL MVC 44 24 27 25 15

Provincial Traffic 61 55 41 42 23

Other Traffic 1 0 0 1 1

Criminal Code Traffic 8 7 12 6 5

Common Police Activities

     False Alarms 24 21 27 32 15

     False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act 12 12 8 10 10

     Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property 0 22 1 6 8

     Persons Reported Missing 0 2 1 1 1

     Spousal Abuse ‐ Survey Code 22 9 14 13 11

June: 2012 ‐ 2016

Drayton Valley Municipal Detachment

Statistical Comparison

This Report is generated from the PROS database and current scoring of files.  All homicide files are not included in this report.

Page 63 of 65



June Trend 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

     Fatals 0 0 0 0 0

     Injury MVC 0 0 1 1 0

     Property Damage MVC (Reportable) 40 20 24 19 12

     Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) 4 4 2 5 3

Total MVC 44 24 27 25 15

June Trend 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Impaired Operation*

Roadside Suspensions ‐ alcohol related ‐ No charge** 1 0 0 1 1

Occupant Restraint/Seatbelt Violations** 0 2 0 0 0

Speeding Violations** 2 2 1 0 2

Intersection Related Violations** 0 2 1 3 1

Driving without Due Care or Attention*

Other Moving Traffic*

Other Non‐Moving Violation** 3 9 6 8 4

Other CC Traffic*** 2 2 1 2 1
    *include "Cleared by Charge" and "Cleared Other"     **"Actual"    ***"Reported"

Drayton Valley Municipal Detachment

5 Year Traffic Summary ‐ Month of June

Currently Not Available

Currently Not Available

Currently Not Available

This Report is generated from the PROS database and current scoring of files.  All homicide files are not included in this report.

Page 64 of 65



Drayton Valley Municipal Detachment

January to June: 2012 ‐ 2016 All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

Category Trend 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Mean Std Deviation Mean + 1 Std Dev FLAG Slope

Theft Motor Vehicle (Total) 54 34 54 25 41 41.6 11.3 52.9 Within Norm ‐3.5

     Auto 2 4 3 1 2 2.4 1.0 3.4 Within Norm ‐0.3

     Truck/SUV/Van 33 12 36 20 27 25.6 8.7 34.3 Within Norm ‐0.4

     Motorcycle 1 1 4 1 0 1.4 1.4 2.8 Within Norm ‐0.2

     Other 14 14 6 3 11 9.6 4.4 14.0 Within Norm ‐1.7

     Take Auto without Consent 4 3 5 0 1 2.6 1.9 4.5 Within Norm ‐0.9

Break and Enter (Total) 60 36 40 35 57 45.6 10.7 56.3 Issue ‐0.7

     Business 13 17 19 17 44 22.0 11.2 33.2 Issue 6.2

     Residence 28 10 12 14 7 14.2 7.3 21.5 Within Norm ‐3.8

     Cottage or Seasonal Residence 0 0 0 0 1 0.2 0.4 0.6 Issue 0.2

     Other 16 4 7 4 4 7.0 4.6 11.6 Within Norm ‐2.4

Spousal Abuse 89 73 70 85 87 80.8 7.8 88.6 Within Norm 0.8

Robbery 1 2 5 2 0 2.0 1.7 3.7 Within Norm ‐0.2

Assault 97 80 72 59 46 70.8 17.5 88.3 Within Norm ‐12.3

Sexual Assaults 11 1 5 5 9 6.2 3.5 9.7 Within Norm 0

Traffic Trend 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Mean Std Deviation Mean + 1 Std Dev FLAG Slope

Impaired Operation*

Roadside Suspensions ‐ alcohol related ‐ No grounds to charge** 13 8 2 4 8 7.0 3.8 10.8 Within Norm ‐1.4

Occupant Restraint/Seatbelt Violations** 4 5 3 3 0 3.0 1.7 4.7 Within Norm ‐1

Speeding Violations** 19 17 12 7 28 16.6 7.1 23.7 Issue 0.8

Intersection Related Violations** 18 7 6 7 7 9.0 4.5 13.5 Within Norm ‐2.2

Driving without Due Care or Attention*

Other Moving Traffic*

Other Non‐Moving Violation** 99 44 48 43 46 56.0 21.6 77.6 Within Norm ‐10.7

Other CC Traffic*** 13 10 6 5 6 8.0 3.0 11.0 Within Norm ‐1.9

Currently Not Available Currently Not Available

Currently Not Available Currently Not Available

Currently Not Available Currently Not Available

This Report is generated from the PROS database and current scoring of files.  All homicide files are not included in this report.

Page 65 of 65


	1.0 2016-07-13 Regular Meeting of Council Agenda Pages
	3.1 2016-06-22 Regular Meeting of Council Minutes
	5.1 Refugee Delegation Form
	5.3 TOA Delegation
	6.1 Tour of Alberta Road Closure RequestCD
	6.2 2016-07-13 IDP Amendment
	6.3. Assessment Review & Property Tax Reduction Request
	6.4. Request to amend Bylaw 2007/15/D
	9.0 - Information Items
	9.1 2016-04-19 EconomicDevelopment Meeting Notes
	9.2 2016-05-24 Sustainability Meeting Notes
	9.3 COB Apr. 26, 2016 Minutes
	9.4 Long - EDA 2016
	9.5 June 2016 STAR Catholic Board Highlights
	9.6 Drayton Valley Municipal Stats June 2016


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


	Name s: Trina Joly and Sandra Bannard
	Organization: Local Organizing Committee for the Tour of Alberta
	Contact Number: 
	E-mail Address: Trina Joly trinajoly@gmail.com
	Mailing Address: 
	Check Box1: Yes
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Off
	information only request for funding concern etc 1: To update Council on the Tour of Alberta event and provide details regarding the festival as well as the route and road closures
	information only request for funding concern etc 2: 
	information only request for funding concern etc 3: 
	information only request for funding concern etc 4: 
	delegation request 1: map of route with list of road closures - to be distributed at the meeting
	delegation request 2: 
	delegation request 3: 
	Please indicate any preference you have for meeting 1: July 13, 2016
	Please indicate any preference you have for meeting 2: 


